citizens for responsibility
CI{E Uc and ethics in washington

May 7, 2014

The Honorable John A. Koskinen

Commissioner

Internal Revenue Service

1111 Constitution Ave., N.W.

Washington, DC 20224

BY HAND

Re: Complaint Against the Center to Protect Patient Rights/American Encore and Sean Noble

Dear Commissioner Koskinen:

Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington (“CREW?) respectfully requests the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) investigate whether the Center to Protect Patient Rights
(“CPPR”), now known as American Encore, a non-profit corporation organized under section
501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Code™), and its president, Sean Noble, violated the
Code and 18 U.S.C. § 1001 by falsely asserting on multiple tax returns it engaged in no political
activity in 2010. Although Mr. Noble made those statements to the IRS under penalty of perjury,
he directly contradicted them in a recent interview, admitting CPPR in fact engaged in extensive
political activity during the 2010 elections.!

Mr. Noble and CPPR’s falsehoods call into question their other representations to the IRS
on CPPR’s tax returns, including claims on the organization’s 2011 and 2012 tax returns that
CPPR did not engage in any political activity in those years. In addition to investigating the
apparent false statements on CPPR’s 2010 tax returns, the IRS should conduct a full audit of
CPPR to determine if Mr. Noble and CPPR made further false statements and if CPPR violated
its tax-exempt status.

Background

Mr. Noble formed CPPR in 2009, and the IRS subsequently granted the organization tax-
exempt status under section 501(c)(4).> News reports closely link the organization with Charles
and David Koch, and CPPR recently was described as a “major cash turnstile for groups on the
right during the past two election cycles.”® Mr. Noble personally served as a political consultant
to the Koch brothers, and frequently attended meetings the pair convened at which money was
raised for groups engaged in political activities.*

' CREW submits this letter in lieu of Form 13909; a copy is being sent to the Dallas office.

2 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended) (attached as Exhibit A).

3 Matea Gold, A Koch-Tied Labyrinth of Political Spending, Washington Post, January 6, 2014 (attached as Exhibit
B). See also, e.g., Kim Barker and Theodoric Meyer, The Dark Money Man: How Sean Noble Moved the Kochs’
Cash Into Politics and Made Millions, ProPublica, February 14, 2014 (attached as Exhibit C).
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CPPR’s 2010 Activities

CPPR initially filed its 2010 Form 990 tax return in November 2011, and filed an
amended 2010 tax return in May 2013.® Mr. Noble signed both tax returns under penalty of
perjury, declaring he had examined the returns, and they were true, correct and complete to the
best of his knowledge and belief.” On both of the 2010 tax returns, Mr. Noble and CPPR
answered “no” to the question: “Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political
campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for public office?”® CPPR also
did not submit a Schedule C, on which tax-exempt organizations report to the IRS and the public
their political campaign activities. In addition, CPPR reported making $44,599,946 in grants to
other tax-exempt organizations in 2010, all of which CPPR claimed were for “general support.™

A recently published news report describes CPPR’s activities during 2010, and directly
contradicts the claims that CPPR engaged in no political activity in 2010.° The report is based
in large part on interviews with Mr. Noble, who is quoted throughout, frequently revealing
internal CPPR activities and strategies not otherwise public. The report does not cite or appear
to rely on any anonymous sources, and only quotes two other interviews. As a result, even
where Mr. Noble is not quoted directly, he was almost certainly the source of the information
about CPPR’s activities.

The report first discusses CPPR’s establishment, with Mr. Noble recounting he created it
in 2009 in conjunction with Randy Kendrick, “a prominent donor to the Kochs’ formidable
fundraising network.”!! The original impetus for the group was to “take the health care fight
national” and establish a section 501(c)(4) group “devoted to putting the brakes on a national
health bill.”**> At a June 2009 “Koch donor seminar,” Mr. Noble said, he and Mrs. Kendrick
raised $13 million for the group.”®> Subsequent Koch brothers-organized gatherings have raised
over $100 million for CPPR, according to the report.!*

5 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (initial) (excerpts attached as Exhibit D).

¢ CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended). The original return was amended to add a Schedule R disclosing for the first
time that CPPR controlled two “disregarded entities” with a total income of nearly $23 million. Id., Schedules O
and R. Despite the tens of millions of dollars involved, Mr. Noble and CPPR claimed the failure to report the
entities was “an inadvertent omission.” Id., Schedule O. Mr. Noble and CPPR’s other false statements call into
question whether this omission genuinely was inadvertent.

7 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (initial), Part II; CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Part II.

8 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (initial), Part IV, Question 3; CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Part IV, Question 3.

9 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (initial), Schedule I, Part II; CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Schedule I, Part I1.

10 Eliana Johnson, Inside the Koch-Funded Ads Giving Dems Fits, National Review Online, March 31,2014
(attached as Exhibit E).
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CPPR initially tried to block passage of the Affordable Care Act."> When the legislation
became law in March 2010, “CPPR’s strategy changed,” and “Noble and his team set their sights
on returning the House to the GOP.”® As described by Mr. Noble, CPPR then proceeded to
engage in extensive direct and indirect political campaign activities in opposition to Democrats
running for the House, researching and producing political advertisements and paying other
groups to run them in competitive House races.

Mr. Noble and CPPR “produced dozens of ads that targeted hundreds of Democratic
congressmen in the 2010 midterm elections,” bringing in “GOP polister and wordsmith Frank
Luntz and ad guru Larry McCarthy” to create and produce the ads, the report states.!”
Acknowledging the political objectives of the ads, Mr. Noble said he and CPPR included then-
House Speaker Nancy Pelosi (D-CA) in advertisements against House Democrats to try to
impact voters: ““When we tied them to Pelosi, swing voters were more likely to vote against
them 65 percent of the time,” Noble says. ‘She was absolutely toxic for her conference with
swing voters.”!8

Mr. Noble and CPPR carefully selected the political races in which the ads would be
broadcast. According to Mr. Noble, he and CPPR first decided to target House races: ““We
made a deliberate recommendation that you gotta focus on the House, . . . . Obamacare clearly
was the watershed moment that provided the juice to deliver the majority back to the
Republicans in the House.””'® To achieve this political goal, Mr. Noble and CPPR relied on a
spreadsheet listing vulnerable Democratic House members ranked “in order of the likelihood of
their defeat.”?® Each House district identified on the spreadsheet was assigned a “‘win potential’
between 1 and 5 and a score between 1 and 40 based on the voting record of each member and
the composition of the district, among other things.”' The spreadsheet evolved as the political
landscape changed. It listed 64 Democratic members on June 8, 2010, but expanded to 88
members later in June and 105 in August.?

While Mr. Noble and CPPR researched and produced political advertisements and
selected the races in which they ran, the organization did not directly pay for the air time to
broadcast the ads. Rather, it earmarked contributions to other groups associated with the Koch
brothers to pay for broadcasting the advertisements: “Noble coordinated the disbursement of
over $50 million to several other groups that paid to put the ads on the air: Americans for

5Srd.

16 1d.

7 Id. According to the report, some of these ads ran in 2009 in an attempt to defeat the Affordable Care Act.
Johnson, National Review Online, Mar. 31, 2014. Many others, however, were broadcast in the midst of the 2010
elections.
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21 Johnson, National Review Online, Mar. 31, 2014.
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Prosperity, the 60 Plus Association, Americans for Job Security, Americans for Limited
Government, and the American Future Fund.”?

Mr. Noble and CPPR used the information in the spreadsheet to help determine how
CPPR’s money was spent by the recipients. In the end, the 105 Democratic candidates were
divided into three tiers based on the likelihood of a Republican win, “and resources were allotted
accordingly.”®® As the election neared: “The political climate was so hostile to Democrats that
Noble wound up running ads against Democrats who fell into tier 3, incumbents he’d determined
it would be difficult to pick off. ‘There was some interesting stretching of the field that no one
thought was possible,” he says.”?

The report identifies several of the ads “CPPR and the constellation of groups to which it
disbursed millions of dollars” broadcast against Democratic candidates.?® These included an ad
ostensibly paid for by the 60 Plus Association (“60 Plus”) criticizing Reps. Alan Grayson (D-FL)
and Suzanne Kosmas (D-FL) that concluded, “this November, we’ll remember,” another 60 Plus
ad urging voters to “vote against” James Oberstar (D-MN), an ad funneled through the American
Future Fund (“AFF”) urging voters to “take the right path” and “vote against™ Rep. Stephanie
Herseth Sandlin (D-SD), and one broadcast in the name of Americans for Job Security (“AJS”)
also exhorting voters to “vote against” Rep. Robert Etheridge (D-NC).?’ These advertisements
were reported to the Federal Election Commission (“FEC”) as independent expenditures.?® Mr.
Noble also admitted other supposed “issue ads” not reported to the FEC similarly were intended
to influence House elections. An ad channeled through Americans for Prosperity against Rep.
Betsy Markey (D-CO) that ran in June and August drove her approval rating so low, “Noble

says, ‘we did not spend another dime in that race from August until Election Day.’p”?

Mr. Noble further acknowledged the purpose of this scheme: “CPPR funneled money to
multiple groups, Noble says, both to protect the anonymity of donors and because IRS
regulations prohibit any individual (c)(4) group from spending more than 50 percent of its time
on candidate-related political activity.”°

B

#Id.

% Johnson, National Review Online, Mar. 31, 2014.

®Id.

21 Id. The ads can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bXyFTCzWiQI;
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=v_ICySd_RKQ; https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GLqzil2dCmY; and
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=unYzX quvbc.

# See AFF Independent Expenditure Reports, available at http://docquery.fec.gov/cgi-bin/fecimg/?C90011677; AJS
Independent Expenditure Reports, available at hitp://docquery.fec.gov/cgi-bin/fecimg/?C90011669; 60 Plus
Independent Expenditure Reports, available at http://docquery.fec.gov/cgi-bin/fecimg/?C90011685.

» Johnson, National Review Online, Mar. 31, 2014,
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It is not clear exactly how much money CPPR spent on political activity in 2010, but it
contributed $33,012,000 to the five groups named in the report.’! For several of the groups, the
amounts received from CPPR is similar to the amounts they reported spending on House races.
AJS, for example, received $4,828,000 from CPPR spent approximately $5,007,447 on House
races.’?> CPPR also spent an unknown amount of time and money to research and create the
advertisements, although it did report paying $150,507 to Mr. Luntz’s consulting firm, The Word
Doctors LLC.* In total, CPPR spent $60,245,391 in 2010.

CPPR’s 2011 and 2012 Activities

CPPR also filed tax returns for 2011 and 2012 that similarly asserted the organization
engaged in no political activity in those years.>> In the news report, Mr. Noble did not discuss
CPPR’s activities in those years, but CPPR’s conduct suggests the claims in its returns may not
be true. CPPR made large grants in 2011 and 2012 to most of the same groups it paid to run
advertisements in 2010, and those groups again engaged in extensive political activities. For
example, CPPR made a total of $5,034,723 in grants to 60 Plus in 2011 and 2012, which in turn
spent $4,615,892 on federal elections in the 2012 cycle.*

Questions about Mr. Noble and CPPR’s veracity also arise from CPPR’s failure to
disclose its role in a scheme to funnel money to California referendum campaigns in 2012 that
resulted in CPPR paying a large fine. Several of CPPR’s 2012 grants went to tax-exempt
organizations involved in campaign activity intended to influence voting on state ballot
questions. In particular, CPPR provided $25 million to AFF and another Koch brothers-related
group, Americans for Responsible Leadership (“ARL”), that immediately gave most of the
money to two other organizations that spent it on ballot initiatives in California. The California
Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”) investigated whether the transfers were properly

3 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Part IX, Line 1 and Schedule I. The news report asserts Noble coordinated the
disbursement of $50 million to other groups to pay for putting the ads on the air. This may include 2010 grants to
other tax-exempt groups and the $10,783,500 CPPR made in grants in 2009.

32 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Schedule I, Part II; Open Secrets, Americans for Job Security, Targeted
Candidates, 2010, available at http://www.opensecrets.org/outsidespending/recips.php?cmte=Americans+for+
Job+Security&cycle=2010. 60 Plus received a $8,990,000 grant from CPPR in 2010, and spent approximately
$6,678,813 on House races. CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Schedule I, Part II; Open Secrets, 60 Plus
Association, Targeted Candidates, 2010, available at http://www.opensecrets.org/outsidespending/recips.php?
cmte=60+Plus+Assn&cycle=2010. AFF received a $11,685,000 grant from CPPR, and spent approximately
$8,499,278 on House races in 2010. CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Schedule I, Part II; Open Secrets, American
Future Fund, Targeted Candidates, 2010, available at
http://www.opensecrets.org/outsidespending/recips.php?cmte=American+Future+

Fund&cycle=2010.

¥ CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Part VII, Section B.

34 CPPR 2010 Form 990 (amended), Part IX, Line 25.

35 CPPR 2011 Form 990 (initial) (excerpts attached as Exhibit F); CPPR 2011 Form 990 (amended) (excerpts
attached as Exhibit G); CPPR 2012 Form 990 (excerpts attached as Exhibit H).

36 CPPR 2011 Form 990 (amended), Schedule I, Part II; CPPR 2012 Form 990, Schedule I, Part II; Open Secrets, 60
Plus Association, Summary, 2012, available at hitp://www.opensecrets.org/outsidespending/detail.php?cmte=
60+Plus+Assn&cycle=2012.




Honorable John A. Koskinen
May 7, 2014
Page 6

reported under California law, and CPPR eventually admitted it failed to disclose its involvement
in providing the funding, and paid (along with ARL) a $1 million fine.?’

As part of the California investigation, a political consultant working with Mr. Noble and
CPPR told the FPPC Mr. Noble said in private correspondence there was a particular reason why
CPPR admitted its involvement in the transfers. When a court decision made it likely CPPR was
about to be audited by the FPPC, Mr. Noble told the consultant he had to concede CPPR’s role
because “we can’t tolerate an audit of CPPR.”® It is remarkable that the possibility of an audit
of CPPR was so worrisome to Mr. Noble that to avoid it, he acknowledged CPPR’s previously
secret role in funding the California campaign and eventually paid a $1 million penalty.

Potential Violations

26 U.S.C. § 7206

Under the Code, any person who “[w]illfully makes and subscribes any return, statement,
or other document, which contains or is verified by a written declaration that it is made under the
penalties of perjury, and which he does not believe to be true and correct as to every material
matter,” is guilty of a felony and subject to up to three years in prison and a fine of up to
$100,000.* On its 2010 tax returns, Mr. Noble and CPPR represented CPPR engaged in no
political activity at all that year, but many of CPPR’s activities Mr. Noble described in the news
report clearly are political. CPPR’s research and production of advertisements expressly
advocating the defeat of Democratic House members, for example, unquestionably is political.*®
Moreover, making contributions to other tax-exempt organizations earmarked to pay to broadcast
ads expressly advocating the defeat of candidates also is political activity.*!

Mr. Noble and CPPR’s misrepresentations appear to be willful. Mr. Noble was involved
in every step of CPPR’s political activities in 2010, and clearly was aware of them when he
signed the Form 990 tax returns. Mr. Noble even had an opportunity to correct the false
statement when CPPR filed an amended return in 2013, yet failed to make any changes
acknowledging CPPR’s extensive political activity. As a result, by falsely claiming CPPR
engaged in no political activity in 2010 and by failing to report the amount of political activity in
which it engaged, CPPR willfully filed a false return in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7206.

37 Fair Political Practices Commission v. Center to Protect Patient Rights and Americans for Responsible
Leadership (Cal. Super. Ct.), Stipulation for Entry of Judgment, at 16-17, available at https://s3.amazonaws.com/
s3.documentcloud.org/documents/809469/arl-cppr-stipulation-final-with-ag.pdf.

38 Transcript of Recorded Interview of Tony Russo, at 107, July 17, 2013 (excerpts attached as Exhibit I, full
interview available at https://ia801005.us.archive.org/6/items/814143-anthony-russo-interview/814143-anthony-
russo-interview.pdf); see also id. at 106 (asserting Mr. Noble said “he couldn’t tolerate an audit of CPPR”).

%26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

40 See Judith E. Kindell and John Francis Reilly, Election Year Issues, 2002 EO CPE Text, at 349, 388; see also
Rev. Rul. 2004-6.

41 See Treas. Reg. 1.527-6(b)(1)(ii) (for a tax-exempt organization’s transfer of funds to another entity to be treated
as not political, the organization must take “reasonable steps to ensure” the recipient does not spend the money on
politics).
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Mr. Noble and CPPR similarly asserted on CPPR’s 2011 and 2012 tax returns that CPPR
engaged in no political activity in those years. The IRS should conduct an audit to determine if
CPPR further violated 26 U.S.C. § 7206 by falsely claiming CPPR engaged in no political
activity in those years and by failing to report the amount of political activity in which it may
have engaged.

26 US.C. § 6652

Under the Code, a tax-exempt organization that, without reasonable cause, fails to
include any of the information required on a Form 990 tax return, or fails to provide the correct
information, is liable for civil penalties.*> By falsely claiming CPPR engaged in no political
activity in 2010 and by failing to report the amount of political activity in which it engaged,
CPPR violated 26 U.S.C. § 6652. The IRS also should conduct an audit to determine if CPPR
further violated 26 U.S.C. § 6652 by falsely claiming CPPR engaged in no political activity in
2011 and 2012, and by failing to report the amount of political activity in which it may have
engaged.

18 U.S.C. § 1001

Federal law prohibits anyone from “knowingly and willfully” making “any materially
false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation” in any matter within the jurisdiction of
the executive, legislative, or judicial branch.** Violations are punishable by up to five years in
prison.** By falsely claiming CPPR engaged in no political activity in 2010 and by failing to
report the amount of political activity in which it engaged, Mr. Noble and CPPR violated 18
U.S.C. § 1001. The IRS also should conduct an audit to determine if Mr. Noble and CPPR
further violated 18 U.S.C. § 1001 by falsely claiming CPPR engaged in no political activity in
2011 and 2012, and by failing to report the amount of political activity in which it may have
engaged.

26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(4)

Section 501(c)(4) provides tax-exempt status to organizations “not organized for profit
but operated exclusively for the promotion of social welfare.” The statute therefore permits
little, if any, activity that does not promote social welfare. Despite the statute’s plain language,
IRS regulations interpreting it provide an organization is operated exclusively for the promotion
of social welfare if it is “primarily engaged in promoting in some way the common good and
general welfare of the people of the community.”® The regulations further provide “direct or
indirect participation or intervention in political campaigns on behalf of or in opposition to any

226 U.S.C. §§ 6652(c)(1)(A)(ii), 6652(c)(4).

418 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(2).

“Id.

%26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(4) (emphasis added).

% Treas. Reg. § 1.501(c)(4)-1(a)(2)(i) (emphasis added).
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candidate for public office” does not promote social welfare.*” The IRS has not further defined
the “primary activity” standard, and provides only that all the facts and circumstances are to be
taken into account in determining the “primary activity” of a section 501(c)(4) organization.*®
Despite this ambiguity, recently disclosed IRS training materials assert the agency generally
understands “primarily” to mean 51 percent in the context of section 501(c)(4).*

It is unclear how much political activity CPPR engaged in during 2010 (although it is
certainly more than what CPPR claimed). The IRS should investigate whether CPPR’s political
activity exceeded the amount permitted in violation of its tax-exempt status. It is also unclear if
CPPR engaged in political activity in 2011 and 2012, and the IRS should conduct an audit to
determine if CPPR violated its tax-exempt status in those years.

Conclusion

This is a simple case of lying to the IRS. Mr. Noble and CPPR claimed on CPPR’s 2010
tax returns the organization engaged in no political activity at all, while in reality — as admitted
by Mr. Noble himself — CPPR spent millions of dollars researching, creating, and paying to
broadcast political advertisements against Democrats in races for the House of Representatives.
The IRS should investigate Mr. Noble and CPPR — including the audit Mr. Noble said he and
CPPR could not “tolerate” — and should the Service find they made false or incomplete
statements on their tax returns, take appropriate action, including but not limited to referring this
matter to the Department of Justice for prosecution. Only vigorous enforcement by the IRS will
deter other organizations from violating our nation’s tax laws for political gain.

Sincerely,

clanie Sloan
Executive Director

Citizens for Responsibility and
Ethics in Washington

Encls.

cc: IRS-EO Classification

4T Treas. Reg. § 1.501(c)(4)-1(a)(2)(ii).

% Rev. Rul. 68-45, 1968-1 C.B. 259.

* IRS Lesson Plan on Section 501(c)(4) Organization, Lesson 2, Civic Leagues, Social Welfare Organizations, and
Local Associations of Employees — IRC Section 501(c)(4), at 5-A-2, available at http://www.taxanalysts.com/

www/features.nsf/Features/230BSFFB8A9A85A685257C63004AFA5B?0OpenDocument.
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Form 990

| omenNo 1545-0047

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4847(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
benefit trust or private foundation)

Open to Public

Depariment of the Treasury .

Internal Revenue Service » The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements Inspection

A For the 2010 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2010, and ending_; , 20

B Check # applicable JC Name of organization Center To Protect Patient Rights, Inc D Employer identification number
Address change Doing Business As 26-4683543

D Name change Number and street (or P O box if mail 1s not defivered o street addrass) Room/surte E Telephone number

O tntal retum P O Box 72465 480-252-0772

D Terminated City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4

B¢ Amended retum

Phoenix, AZ 85050 G Gross receipts $ 60,885,692

] Application pending

F Name and address of pnincipal officer
Sean Noble - P O Box 72465 Phoenix, AZ 85050

H(a) s this a group retum for affiliates? D Yes No
H(b) Are all affihates ncluded? L Yes (] No

| __ Tax-exempt status

O so1enm 501(c)( 4 ) (nsetno) [ ] 4947(aftyor [] 527 It “No," attach a ist (see instructsons)

J _Website: > None

H(c) Group exemption number P>

K Form of organization Corporation ] Trust (7] Association D Other P> ] L. Year of formation 2009 LM State of legal donicile MD
Summary
Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant actvitees:
p Building a coalition of like-minded organizations and indidulals, and educating the public on Issues related to )
g health care with an emphasis on patients rghts Engaging in 1ssue advocacy and activities to influence
E legisiation related to health Oy e e e
2! 2 Check this box » [ i the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of tts net assets.
g 3  Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1a) . 3 3
2| 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1b) 4 2
£| 5 Total number of individuals employed in caiendar year 2010 (Part V, line 2a) 5 0
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) .o 6 0
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Viil, column (C), line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Coninbutions and grants (Part Vill, line 1h) . 13,656,500 61,838,792
§ 9  Program service revenue (Part Vill, ine 2g) . 0 0,
E 10 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . 21 2,470
11 Other revenue (Part VIil, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢c, 10¢, and 11e) . 0 0
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vill, column (A), hine 12) 13,656,711 61,841,262
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), ines 1-3) . 10,783,500 44,599,946
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part iX, column (A), hne 4) 0 0
@ |15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column {A), ines 5—1 0) 0 0
¢ | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (8), itne 11e) . . 154,927 212,138
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line25) » 212,139
17  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), ines 11a-1 1d =240 .. .. 1,110,525 15,433,307
18  Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column- (A), hne 25) 12,048,952 60,245,391
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from Ime 12- - 1,608,260 1,595,871
58 3 . | Baginning of Current Year End of Year
8520 Total assets (Part X, e 16) 5. MAV. 9 & zp 1: 3 R 1.608,260 3.220,364
ég 21 Total llabliitles (Part X, line 26) . L e e 500 0
=2l 22  Net assets or fund balances Subtract line 21 from line 20 2 1,607,760 3,220,364
Signature Block M i
Under penathes of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retum, ncluding accompanying schedules and.éfa‘tements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, comrect, and compl@ed tid of preparer (other than oﬂlcet) 1s based on all nformation of which preparer has any knowledge
} 2 | 16 WMoy 2013
Sign Sign officer Date U
Here "\
} Type or pnnt name and title s P
Paid Pnnt/Type preparer’s name W ,Z/ ‘ Date / / it « [PTN
Preparer Howard Sckolnik E) /} self-employed|  P01064967
Use Only Fum's name > Howard Sckolmk CPA Frm's EIN »
Furmn's address » 11646 N. 129th Way, Scottsdale, AZ 85259 Phone no 602-524-0974
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) O ves (I No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y Form 990 (2010) @

5-\3-% >°<
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Form 890 (2010) Page 2

E1ggllf  Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPartt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . O

1 Bnefly describe the organization's mission:

legislation related to health care

2 Did the orgamization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Fom9900r990-E2? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .+ o+« . [OYes “INo
If “Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

. 3 Dd the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes In how it conducts, any program

services? . . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e o o e e e v v v OYes #INo
If “Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Descnbe the exempt purpose achievements for each of the organization's three largest program services by expenses. Section
501(c)}(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to
others, the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 59,274,135 including grants of $ 44,291,946 ) (Revenue $ )

Coalition Building The organization helped to build a coalition of Iike minded organizations and individuals, which
worked 1o educate the public about healthcare reform and advocate in favor or patients rights

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services. (Descnbe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ } (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses P> $59,274,135

Form 990 (2010)




Form 890 (2010) ~
Checklist of Required Schedules

1

2
3

10

1"

12a

13
14a
15
16
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Is the organization described In section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a pruvate foundatnon)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A . . .o

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contnbutors? (see mstmctlons) .
Did the organization engage In direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part| .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying actnvntres, or have a sectlon 501(h)
election in effect dunng the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il .

Is the organization a section 501(c){4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershtp dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If “Yes," complete Schedule C,
Part il .

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts where donors have
the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part | . .o .
Did the organization receive or hold a conservatlon easement Includlng easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or histonic structures? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part lif

Did the organization report an amount In Part X Ilne 21;serve as a custodlan for amounts not hsted n Part
X; or provide credit counseling, debt management credit reparr, or debt negotiation services? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part IV . .o e ...
Did the organization, directly or through a related orgamzatlon hold assets in term, permanent, or quasi-
endowments? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V .

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions Is “Yes " then complete Schedule D Parts VI
VIil, VI, IX, or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equupment 